
Andover City Council Workshop  September 29, 2008 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING 
Monday, September 29. 2008 

7:00 pm 
Andover Central Park Lodge 

Minutes 
 
Members Present: 
Mayor Ben Lawrence, City Council Members Caroline Hale, Carol Roberts, 
Kevin Dreiling, Julie Reams, J.R. Jessen and Clark Nelson. 
 

Members Present 

Others in attendance: 
City Administrator Sasha Stiles, Director of Public Works Les Mangus, 
Administrative Services Director Donna Davis, City Engineer Mike Thompson, 
POE & Associates, Financial Advisor Jeff Bridges, DeWaay Financial 
Network, and Consultant David Foster, Rice Foster and Associates. 
 
Guests: 
Tom Montgomery and Kirk Jurgensen of Gossen Livingston Associates 
 

 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Lawrence.  Mayor 
Lawrence noted that agenda item C, discussion of the new city hall concept 
would be considered first. 

Call to Order 

  
Mr. Tom Montgomery of Gossen Livingston Associates presented the revised 
city hall concept that was created after working with staff at City Hall.  Options 
presented included a version that had been submitted to the architect by Les 
Mangus, as well as two revised versions that the architects had completed.  The 
square footage of the conceptual plan had been reduced in all three versions, 
and this had resulted in approximately $600,000 dollars in cost reduction. 

City Hall Concept 

  
Mayor Lawrence commented that he felt there could be further cost reduction 
through value engineering; Mr. Montgomery commented that the value 
engineering occurs as one of the last stages after construction plans are almost 
complete.  Mayor Lawrence also commented that the reserves in the budget that 
have been saved for use in this project should cover the costs of all of the 
moveable equipment, as well as some of the fixed equipment costs that were 
listed in the budget submitted by Gossen Livingston Associates. 

 

  
Clark Nelson commented that he felt that the architects had done a good job in 
revising the document in an attempt to reduce costs. 

 

  
Mr. Montgomery stated that they needed some direction from the Council about 
whether or not to move forward to the first step of designing construction plans.  
Mayor Lawrence responded that the cost of the project would determine 
whether or not the Council would be willing to move forward. 

 

  
Mayor Lawrence asked Mr. Jeff Bridges if the Council could use Public  

1  of  4 



Andover City Council Workshop  September 29, 2008 

Building Commission funding for the project, and if the City would be able to 
pay the debt service on the project.  Mr. Bridges responded the City had two 
options – level debt service or escalating debt service.  With level debt service 
financing the payments would remain basically the same throughout the life of 
the bond, but would take longer to pay off.  With escalating debt service, the 
payments would be lower at the beginning of the life of the bond and would 
escalate throughout the life of the bond resulting in the bond being paid off 
sooner.  Mr. Bridges noted the increase in commercial growth the City has 
experienced will impact the level of revenue from property taxes.  This would 
work well with the escalating debt service concept – small payments at first, 
escalating payments that would allow for growth to occur and would allow the 
City the opportunity to increase revenues and pay higher debt service on the 
project.   
  
Mayor Lawrence stated that the Police Station addition to City Hall was a five 
year plan and that we are reaching the end of that five year period. 

 

  
Kevin Dreiling stated that he was interested in seeing a ten year plan with 
anticipated costs such as operating costs, personnel costs, debt service 
payments and other expenses that would be regularly incurred by the City. 

 

  
Carol Roberts inquired about any cost savings in 15 year financing for the 
facility.  Jeff Bridges stated that 15 year financing would raise the payments, 
but would save interest.  Mr. Bridges explained that a fifteen year bond would 
save 1 million dollars in interest, but would raise the debt service payments 
$85,000 per year. 

 

  
Jeff Bridges stated that the City’s reserve funds could be used to pay the 
architects or that the Public Building Commission (PBC) could pass a 
resolution for the financing of costs, there would also have to be a dollar limit 
included in the resolution at the time it was passed.  Mr. Bridges suggested the 
cash reserves could be used to have the architects work on a more defined scope 
for the project, and then the PBC could decide whether or not to pass a 
resolution. 

 

  
Caroline Hale commented that the plans could still be used in the future if the 
initial project costs were paid with cash and a PBC resolution was protested by 
the public. 

 

  
The Governing Body concurred that the timing is appropriate to move forward 
with the project, but that any cost savings that could be found be sought along 
the way.  Mr. Bridges suggested having the PBC pass a resolution, publishing it 
in the newspaper and waiting to see what the public reaction would be. 

 

  
Mr. Mike Thompson of Poe & Associates explained that the growth on 21st 
Street has really begun to expand quickly.  Mr. Thompson also explained the 
contract Wichita’s portion of the project from K96 to 159th Street is scheduled 
to let in October. 

21st Street Expansion 

  

2  of  4 



Andover City Council Workshop  September 29, 2008 

Les Mangus explained that the City of Andover owns 159th Street at 21st Street 
to the center line of the road, but Andover has permission to annex the Right of 
Way to the west side of 159th Street.  Les also stated if the City of Wichita 
builds the intersection they will also maintain the intersection at 159th Street 
and 21st Street. 

 

  
Mike Thompson stated the City of Andover has a good working relationship 
with Sedgwick County at this time, and we are just beginning to establish a 
relationship with the City of Wichita.  In addition, Mr. Thompson stated we 
need to continue developing the relationship with the City of Wichita.  Mr. 
Thompson continued by explaining that the 21st Street concept was a four (4) 
lane road with a raised median for better access control due to the high volume 
of traffic on 21st Street.  Access control would include fewer left turn lanes on 
21st Street.  Mr. Thompson next explained that Marc Street would be a 
signalized intersection at 21st Street due to the fact that it would be the future 
entrance to the Cornerstone Commercial development.  Left turns in and out of 
Lakeside Drive could be accommodated; however, the traffic counts at that 
intersection would not warrant a signalized intersection.  The plan includes a 
five (5) foot sidewalk on the north side of 21st Street and a ten (10) foot 
hike/bike path on the south side of 21st Street.   

 

  
Kevin Dreiling stated the City should be seeking input from developer George 
Laham, he is developing the commercial portion of Cornerstone located on 21st 
Street, it would be good to have his support of the project. 

 

  
David Foster, Rice Foster & Associates explained the landscaping portion of 
the 21st Street expansion project.  Mr. Foster explained that the concept 
included five (5) to six (6) key landscape elements.  Mr. Foster thanked the 
Council for the opportunity to plan the landscaping elements in advance of the 
actual construction phase.  David Foster explained the landscape elements 
included aesthetics, rhythm, repetition of materials such as trees, benches and 
trash receptacles along the hike/bike path that would echo the benches and trash 
receptacles along other hike/bike routes in Andover.  Pedestrian/bike nodes 
including the benches and trash receptacles would be located at intersections.  
Pedestrian size lighting is included in the conceptual design.  Mr. Foster stated 
he hoped a by-product of this conceptual design plan would be that the Site 
Plan Review Committee would receive a copy of the Council approved plan 
and would use as a reference for future developments and required elements.  
An example of required landscaping would include requiring a 10 foot 
landscaping buffer at the time Site Plan reviewed, and requiring similar 
landscaping elements and materials from new developments.  Mr. Foster also 
explained a 20 foot tall entry monument at the northeast corner of 21st Street 
and 159th Street was included in the concept.   

 

  
The Council expressed concern over the large size of the entry monument.  Mr. 
Foster stated the Cornerstone monument located east of the proposed location 
of the City’s entry monument was a good comparison of size.   

 

  
Mike Thompson thanked the Council for their input and stated he would seek  

3  of  4 



Andover City Council Workshop  September 29, 2008 

input from the major landholders along the 21st Street corridor in Andover.  Mr. 
Thompson also stated they would attempt to tighten the conceptual plan and 
incorporate the Council’s comments. 
  
Sasha Stiles explained the City has approximately 1.3 million dollars in 
commercial bonding capacity available for improvements to the industrial park.  
The Council reviewed the preliminary improvement plans that were provided 
by Poe & Associates. 

Industrial Park 
Improvements 

  
Mayor Lawrence stated that the Council would need to decide who would be 
responsible for payment of specials.  Did they want to pay for some of the 
improvements or have potential tenants be incorporated into the improvement 
district and be responsible for special assessments?  The Council further 
discussed making special assessment payments on a conditional basis in order 
to offer some incentives to potential tenants. 

 

  
Mayor Lawrence inquired how the City would pay special assessments if that 
was the decision that was made.  Jeff Bridges, Financial Advisor stated that 
they could be paid from street, sewer and water funds. 

 

  
Motion by Council Member Nelson, seconded by Council Member Jessen to 
adjourn. 
 
Motion carried 6/0. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:32 pm. 
 

Meeting Adjourned  

Respectfully Submitted by 
Sasha Stiles  
City Administrator 
 
Approved this 14th day of October, 2008 by the City Council, City of Andover. 
 
 

 

 

4  of  4 


